
 
 
Bill Cullen MBA (ISM), BA(Hons) MRTPI 

Chief Executive 

 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Executive 

 
 Cllr SL Bray (Chair) 

Cllr MC Bools (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr MB Cartwright 
Cllr WJ Crooks 
 

Cllr L Hodgkins 
Cllr KWP Lynch 
Cllr MT Mullaney 
 

 
Copy to all other Members of the Council 
 
(other recipients for information) 
 
Dear member, 
 
There will be a meeting of the EXECUTIVE in the De Montfort Suite, Hinckley Hub on 
WEDNESDAY, 13 SEPTEMBER 2023 at 6.30 pm and your attendance is required. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Rebecca Owen 
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Date: 05 September 2023 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

Fire Evacuation Procedures 
 

 On hearing the fire alarm, leave the building at once quickly and calmly by the 
nearest escape route (indicated by green signs). 

 

 There are two escape routes from the Council Chamber – at the side and rear. 
Leave via the door closest to you. 

 

 Proceed to Willowbank Road car park, accessed from Rugby Road then 
Willowbank Road. 

 

 Do not use the lifts. 
 

 Do not stop to collect belongings. 
 
 
Recording of meetings 

 
At HBBC we are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow 
recording, filming and photography at all public meetings including Council, the 
Executive and Planning Committee as long as doing so does not disturb or disrupt the 
proceedings. There may occasionally be some reports that are discussed in private 
session where legislation requires this to happen, but this is infrequent. 
 
We also allow the use of social media during meetings, which helps to bring the issues 
discussed to a wider audience. 
 
Members of the public, members of the press and councillors are hereby informed that, 
in attending the meeting, you may be captured on film. If you have a particular problem 
with this, please contact us so we can discuss how we may accommodate you at the 
meeting. 
 
 
Use of mobile phones 

 
To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch off your phone 
or other mobile device or turn it onto silent or vibrate mode. 
 

Thank you 



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

EXECUTIVE  -  13 SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES  

2.   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2023. 

3.   ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES  

 To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chair decides by 
reason of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this 
meeting. 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive verbally from members any disclosures which they are required to 
make in accordance with the Council’s code of conduct or in pursuance of Section 
106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  This is in addition to the need 
for such disclosure to be also given when the relevant matter is reached on 
the agenda. 

5.   QUESTIONS  

 To hear any questions in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12. 

6.   ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  

 (If any) 

7.   CARBON EMISSIONS REDUCTION FROM LIGHT FLEET (HVO) (Pages 3 - 8) 

 To advise members of the opportunity to expand hydrogenated vegetable oil 
(HVO) use across the light fleet and to recommend adoption of this fuel as a cost-
effective way to reduce the council’s carbon emissions. 

8.   ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DECIDES HAVE TO 
BE DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 26 - 

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 

19 JULY 2023 AT 6.30 PM 
 
PRESENT: Cllr SL Bray - Chair 
 Cllr MC Bools – Vice-Chair 
Cllr MB Cartwright, Cllr WJ Crooks, Cllr L Hodgkins, Cllr KWP Lynch and 
Cllr MT Mullaney 
 
Officers in attendance: Bill Cullen, Julie Kenny, Sharon Stacey, Rebecca 
Valentine-Wilkinson and Lisa Rees 
 

52. Minutes  
 
It was moved by Councillor Bray, seconded by Councillor Cartwright and 
 
 RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2023 

be confirmed and signed by the chairman. 
 

53. Declarations of interest  
 
No interests were declared at this stage. 
 

54. Bradgate Stables options appraisal  
 
Members received a report which requested an increased budget to allow for the 
commissioning of an options appraisal for Bradgate Stables. 
 
In response to a question from members regarding the budget being ring-fenced, 
it was confirmed that the original funding would be ring-fenced for this project. 
 
It was moved by Councillor WJ Crooks, seconded by Councillor Cartwright and 
 
  RESOLVED –  
 

(i) That the request for additional expenditure budget of 
£27,750 and an income budget of £22,200 for the options  
appraisal for Bradgate Stables be approved; 
 

(ii) That the additional £27,750 expenditure budget, 80% would 
be funded via the additional grant from Historic England 
leaving a net additional cost of £5,550 to the Council. 

 
55. New Big Bin Service  

 
Members received  a report on the new waste collection proposed for residents. 
Following an operational review of the Clean Neighbourhoods Service, officers 
recommended the introduction of a new waste collection service to help dispose 
of clear out waste and reduce fly tipping. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

- 27 - 

In response to a question from members, it was confirmed that marketing this 
service would be done through the borough bulletin and other social media 
channels. 
 
Members congratulated the team on this new initiative. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hodgkins, seconded by Councillor Bray and 
 
  RESOLVED –  
 

(i) Members endorsed the recommendation to introduce the 
new big bin service for a one-year trial period; and 

 
(ii) Approved the supplementary income and expenditure 

budgets of £46,725.  
 
 

(The Meeting closed at 6.44 pm) 
 
 
 
 

  CHAIR 
 

Page 2



 
 
Forward timetable of consultation and decision making 
       
Executive    13 September 2023 
 
Wards affected:  All wards 
 
 

Carbon emissions reduction from light fleet (HVO) 
 
 

Report of Director Corporate Services  
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1 To advise members of opportunity to expand Hydrogenated Vegetable oil 

(HVO) use across the light fleet and to recommend adoption of this fuel as a 
cost-effective way to reduce the Councils carbon emissions. 
 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 Members endorse and agree the use of HVO in the light fleet (vans and cars) 
to reduce carbon emissions. 

 
2.2  Members agree the supplementary budgets set out in 5.1 for the current 

financial year and future years.   
 
3. Background to the report 
 
3.1 HBBC Fleet accounts for 43% of the Councils carbon emissions (953t CO2e) 

HVO is identified within the Green Fleet Rout Map as early and cost-effective 
mechanism for the council to reduce its carbon emissions and the majority of 
the Councils HGV fleet has been running on HVO since March 2023.  

 
3.2  The replacement light fleet comes on stream in 2 phases, September to 

December 2023 and the Spring 2024. With the exception of the 5 electric 
vehicles, and 1 petrol vehicle all the new vehicles can operate using HVO.  It 
has also now been confirmed by manufacturers that the large grounds 
maintenance machinery can all operate on HVO (8 total - tractors, excavators, 
and ride on mowers). This report therefore proposes that a total of 37 vehicles 
now switch to HVO.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 
3.3 Diesel prices and HVO prices continue to be volatile and subject to global 

impacts. This makes a budget forecast difficult but both prices appear to track 
each other. The average price difference between April and June 2023 has 
been 44p compared to 30p 12 months ago. The table below shows the 
financial impacts use both these prices.  

 
3.4 The budget increases and carbon savings are shown in the table below 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5  The cost per tonne of CO2e saved at 44p per litre is £170.04.  
 
3.6 The positive reputational impacts of this change need to be maximised and 

smaller vehicle signage can be used. Est cost £4000.  
 
3.7  HVO is being increasingly used by local authorities to reduce their emissions. 

In Leicestershire NWLDC and BDC are now using HVO. There are a large 
number of other LA’s nationally making the same change as HVO is a lower 
cost alternative to Electric refuse trucks in the short term.  
 

4. Exemptions in accordance with the Access to Information procedure 
rules 

 
4.1 This report can be taken in public session.  

 
5. Financial implications [IB] 

. 
5.1 The table summarises the additional fuel  cost for the light fleet and assumes 

vehicles operated by Street Scene Services move to HVO in September 23 
and Repairs move to HVO in April 24.  

  

  Sep-23 one off Apr-24  Annual 

  £ £ 

44p 17,676 37,239 

 

Number of vehicles 37 

Current diesel use  (L) 84,633 

    

23/24 ests (24 vehicles 7 months)   

Increased cost 44p per litre £17,676 

Increased cost 30p per litre £12,052 

    

2024/25 ests (37 vehicles full year)   

Increased cost 44p per litre £37,239 

Increased cost 30p per litre £25,390 

    

Carbon emissions saved (CO2e) full year 219 

% of total Councils emissions 8.89 

Page 4



  
5.2 This will require a supplementary budget approval by the Executive.  

 
6. Legal implications [HI] 
 

6.1 The Council’s contract procedure rules will need to be complied with when 
procuring the goods which are the subject of this report. 

  
6.2 The Climate Change Act 2008 imposes a target on central Government be net 

zero by 2050. The Council has, along with others, set an earlier target of 
2030. 

 
6.3 Officers will need to ensure that what is proposed complies with the 

requirements of the Environmental Act 2021.  
 
7. Corporate Plan implications 

 
7.1 Refuse collection services contribute to the place objective of keeping our 

Borough clean, green and safe, and this switch to HVO will contribute 
significantly to delivering the climate change strategy / net zero by 2030 
ambition. 
 

8. Consultation 
 

8.1 The climate change members working group supported the Green Fleet 
Route map. This report will be discussed at the Climate members Working 
group meeting on 5 September 2023. 
 

9. Risk implications 
 

9.1 It is the council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks 
which may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 

9.2 It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will 
remain which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion 
based on the information available, that the significant risks associated with 
this decision / project have been identified, assessed and that controls are in 
place to manage them effectively. 
 

9.3 The following significant risks associated with this report / decisions were 
identified from this assessment: 

  

Page 5



 

Risk description Mitigating actions Owner 

Reputation – failure to deliver 
climate change strategy / reduce 
emissions  

SLT to make an on 
balance decision based on 
length of time  / cost 
needed to eliminate / 
reduce other council 
emissions from buildings. 

SLT 

Opportunity Reputational – 
significant reduction in emissions in 
the short term  

Ensure promoted e.g. 
press coverage, vehicle 
livery etc 

Caroline 
Roffey / 
Comms /  

Environmental – adverse impacts 
from HVO 
 

Ensure HVO is sourced 
from an accredited 
scheme and doesn’t 
damage environment 

Darren 
Moore 

Financial – HVO unaffordable with 
MTFS 

Ensure costs reflected 
within MTFS and budget 
setting  

Ashley 
Wilson 

Financial  - prices increase beyond 
budget forecasts 

Set a tolerance and review 
use of HVO if prices 
exceed the fuel budgets 
Join appropriate 
procurement framework 
for HVO 

Caroline 
Roffey / 
Darren 
Moore 

Operational – ensure HVO supply 
available and diesel supply reduced 

All tanks would be 
changed to HVO and 
remaining diesel vehicles 
would switch to fuel cards  

Darren 
Moore 

 
10. Knowing your community – equality and rural implications 

 
10.1 This change would have no impact on the services received by residents. It is 

an operational change that will reduce our climate change emissions which 
will bring long term benefits for all residents.  

 
11. Climate implications 
 
11.1 Any HVO used will need to be from an accredited source to ensure it is a 

waste product and is not contributing to deforestation / other adverse climate 
impacts. 

 
11.2 Whilst reducing HGV fleet emissions by 90%, HVO does not reduce these 

emissions by 100%. As such full consideration of electric vehicles needs to be 
made as part of future fleet replacement. 

 
11.3 The use of HVO is the only way to reduce the emissions from HBBC fleet in 

the short term.  
 
11.4  Given 3.7 at present appears to be the only affordable mechanism to achieve 

a significant reduction in emissions in the short term.   

Page 6



 
12. Corporate implications 
 
12.1 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into 

account: 
 

- Community safety implications 
- Environmental implications 
- ICT implications 
- Asset management implications 
- Procurement implications 
- Human resources implications 
- Planning implications 
- Data protection implications 
- Voluntary sector 

 
 
 
Background papers: Green Fleet Route Map 2022 
 
Contact officer:  Caroline Roffey x5782 
Executive member:  Councillor Lynda Hodgkins (Street Scene) 
 Councillor M Cartwright (Climate Change) 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Carbon emissions reduction from light fleet (HVO)

